MU

Member MKJ Group

Dated: O\lw[207

To,

The Secretary,

The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
7, Lyons Range

Kolkata ~ 700 001

Dear Sir,

Ref: Scrip Code:

RIGHT
INNUVA
KNOW-HOW
LIMITED

Formerly Known as “The Right Address Lid."
Regd office : Sagar Estate, 4% Floor,

2, Clive Ghat Street,

Kolkata - 700 001

Phones : 2230-4571/72/73

Fax :91-33-2248-7669 / 2243-4736

Email : mkjris@keventer.com

CIN No. ; L51109WB1974PLC029635

Web : rightaddressitd.in

Sub: Submission of Audited Financial Results for the Financial Year ended 31

March, 2021.

Pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, we are enclosing herewith the Audited Financial Results along with
the declaration for unmodified opinion for the year ended 315t March, 2021.

This is for your kind information and record

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,

For, Right Innuva Know-How Limited Limited
(FKA: The Right Address Ltd)

_ju»eﬂcxjam K}\O\hdo.\wokp

DireetorfAuthorised Signatory

Encl.: As above.



RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED
(formerly The Right Address Limited)
"SAGAR ESTATE", 411 FLOOR, 2, CLIVE GHAT STREET, KOLKATA- 700 001
Website: rightaddressltd.in
Phn: (033) 2230 4571/72/73, Fax: (033) 2248 7669/2243 4736
Email: mkjrls@keventer.com, CIN: L51109WB1974PLC029635

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of RIGHT
INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED (formerly The Right Address Limited) will be held at its Registered
office at “Sagar Estate”,2, Clive Ghat Street, Kolkata - 700001 on Thursday, 30" day of September, 2021
at 12 Noon to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Financial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2021 together with the Reports
of the Directors, Auditors and Secretarial Auditors.

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31t March,
2021 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00598710), who retires by rotation
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00598710), who is liable to retire by rotation
pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible has offered himself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company.”

Regd. Office:- For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
"Sagar Estate",
2, Clive Ghat Street,
Kolkata - 700001
Sd/-
Manoj Bose
Director
Dated: 31st August, 2021 DIN: 01331680



RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED
(formerly The Right Address Limited)

NOTES:-

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS
ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. A
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PROXY FORM DULY COMPLETED
AND SIGNED SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT
LESS THAN 48 HOURSBEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING.

As per Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, a person can act as a
Proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. However,a member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a
single person as Proxy and such person shall not act as a Proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2. Corporate members intending to send their Authorised Representatives to attend the Meeting are
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorising their
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

3. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report to the
Meeting.

4. The disclosures required pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Director
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) are given as an
Annexure to this Notice.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24t day
of September, 2021 to 30" day of September, 2021 (both days inclusive).

6. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be
transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request
received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks
associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding shares in
physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Members
can contact the Company or Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, CB Management Services
Private Limited, P-22, Bondel Road, Kolkata-700 019 for assistance in this regard.

7. Members are requested to notify immediately any change of address:
i. To their Depository participants (DP’s) in respect of shares held in electronic form; and
ii. To the Company at its Registered Office, in respect of their Physical Shares, if any, quoting
their folio number.

8. The annual accounts of the subsidiary company of the Company is available for inspection by any
shareholder in the Registered Office of the holding and concerned subsidiary company and the hard
copy of the same and related detailed information will be furnished, on demand, to any shareholder.

9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Register of Contracts or arrangements in
which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be
available for inspection by the Members at the Annual General Meeting.
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10. The precautionary measures to be adopted while attending the Annual General Meeting of the
during Covid-19 times are provided at the last page of the Notice.

11. A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the
Company is given at the end of this Notice as per the requirement of the Secretarial Standards - 2 on
“General Meetings”.

12. Voting through electronic means (E-voting)

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended and the provisions of
Regulation 44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting (SS-2) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,the Company is pleased to provide e-voting facility to
its members to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the meeting
by electronic means and the items of business given in the Notice of meeting may be transacted
through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting
system from a place other than venue of the meeting (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The facility for voting, through ballot paper shall also be made available at the venue of the Annual
General Meeting (AGM), apart from the remote e-voting facility provided prior to the date of AGM. No
voting by show of hands will be allowed at the Meeting. The members attending the meeting, who
have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their voting rights at
the meeting. The members who have already cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting
may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again at the AGM. Members
who have casted their vote by both the modes, than vote casted through poll will be treated invalid.

The Company has appointed Mr. Mohan Ram Goenka, Practicing Company Secretary, (COP No.
2551), as Scrutinizer for conducting the e-voting process in accordance with the law and in a fair and
transparent manner. The results on the resolution will be declared not later than three (3) days from
the conclusion of the AGM i.e. 2"d October, 2021. The declared results along with the Scrutinizer's
Report shall be placed on the Company's website and on the website of CDSL at
www.evotingindia.com and will also be forwarded to the Stock Exchanges where the Company’'s
shares are listed subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the resolutions set out in the Notice
shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM.

Please see the instruction below on E-voting facility:

® The voting period begins on Monday, 27t September, 2021 (9.00 A.M. IST) and ends on
Wednesday, 29" September, 2021 (5.00 P.M. IST). During this period shareholders of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form as on the cut-off date
i.e.23d September, 2021, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the
member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

(i) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to
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its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user
IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

(iv)
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode in CDSL is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
Demat mode with CDSL

any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on
Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.
CDSL//IKARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’
website directly.

3) |If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiReqgistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page
or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin

5) The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Shareholders
(holding  securities in
demat mode) login
through their Depository
Participants

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your
Depository Participant registered with CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login,
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
securities in Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at
022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43.

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form:

a. Click on “Shareholders/Members” tab to cast your votes
b. Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.

c. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

d. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted
on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

e. Ifyou are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders).

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA
or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend - Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
Bank recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details or

Date  of - If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter
Birth the member idffolio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in
(DOB) instruction (v).

f.  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
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Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu
wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field.
Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of
any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN of the Company on which you choose to vote from the drop down menu and
click on “SUBMIT".

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that
you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click
on “CANCEL”" and accordingly modify your vote.

. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If Demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password and enter the details as prompted by the system.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android
based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and
Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store
respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your
mobile.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For Remote Voting

only.

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be

emailed to hel pdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on.
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The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and
on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer
to verify the same.

Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer (goenkamohan@gmail.com) and to the Company at
the email address viz mkjris@keventer.com , if they have voted from individual tab & not
uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting

under Reqgulation 36(3) of The Securities Exchange and Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015

Name of Director

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jalan

Date of Birth

08-03-1948

Qualifications

Graduate from St. Xaviers College

Brief resume and expertise in
specific functional area

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jalan, is a noted industrialist. He has business interests
in dairy, food processing, real estate, port, steel, and other industrial sectors.
He has extensive knowledge in international marketing, especially on the
trends in UK, USA, Germany, and Japan. He is also a trustee member of
Heritage School and Heritage School of Technology He is a philanthropist, a
humanitarian, and a guiding force for many and his name, stature, and legacy
is noteworthy.

Date of appointment on the
Board

11-04-1994

Directorships held in other
companies as on 31.03.2021

MKJ Developers Limited

MKJ Enterprises Limited

Kulpi Port Holding Private Limited
MKJ Tradex Limited

Keventer Capital Limited

Dankuni Projects Limited

Sasmal Infrastructure Private Limited

Membership/ Chairmanship of
Committees of the Board of
Directors of the Company as
on 31.03.2021

Nil

Membership/ Chairmanship of
Committees of other
companies as on 31.03.2021

Yes, in M/s MKJ Enterprises Limited, he is a Member in Stakeholders
Relationship Committee

Shareholding in the Company

49336 nos. of equity shares.

attended during FY 2020-21
[out of 11 (eleven)] held

Relationship with other | None
Directors/ KMP
No. of Board Meetings | 10

sought to be paid and the
Remuneration last drawn

Terms and conditions of | Appointed as Non Executive Director liable to retirement by rotation.
Appointment or Re-

appointment

Details of  Remuneration | Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jalan is entitled to sitting fees for attending

meetings of the Board thereof.
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Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Venue of the meeting: 'SAGAR ESTATE', 2, CLIVE GHAT STREET, KOLKATA -700001
Date & Time: 30'" Day of September, 2021 at 12.00 NOON.

CIN:

L51109WB1974PLC029635

Name of the Company:

RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LTD

Registered Office :

'SAGAR ESTATE', 2, CLIVE GHAT STREET, KOLKATA-700 001

Name of the Member(s) :

Registered Address :

E-mail Id :

Folio No. /DP ID / Client ID :

I/We, being the member(s) holding
company, hereby appoint:

(number) shares of the above named

Name : | E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature of Proxy:

OR FAILING HIM
Name : E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature of Proxy:

OR FAILING HIM
Name : ‘ E-mail Id:
Address:
Signature of Proxy:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Forty Sixth Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 30" Day of September, 2021 at 12 Noon at its
Registered office at 'Sagar Estate’, 2, Clive Ghat Street, Kolkata-700 001and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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SI. No. Resolution(s) Vote
ORDINARY BUSINESS For |Against
Resolution 1. To receive, consider and adopt:
a. the Audited financial statements for the year 31 March, 2021
together with the Reports of the Directors, Auditors and Secretarial
Auditors.
b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended 31st March, 2021 together with the Report of the
Auditors thereon.
Resolution 2. | To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN:
00598710), who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.
Signed this day of 2021
Affix
Revenue
Signature of Shareholder: Stamp

Signature of Proxyholder:

Note:

1 This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the

Meeting.

2 The proxy need not be a member of the company.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Forty Sixth ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Thursday, 30" Day of September, 2021 at 12.00 Noon at its Registered office at 'Sagar Estate', 2, Clive
Ghat Street, Kolkata -700001.

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING
VENUE

Name and Address of the Equity Shareholder (IN BLOCK LETTERS):

Name and Address of the Proxy (IN BLOCK LETTERS, to be filled in by the proxy attending instead of the
Equity Shareholder):

| hereby record my presence at the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the company, to be held on
Thursday, 30" Day of September, 2021 at 12 Noon at its Registered office at' Sagar Estate', 2, Clive Ghat
Street, Kolkata-700 001.

Folio No. / DP ID / Client ID: Number of Shares held :

Signature of the Shareholder/
Proxy/Representative present
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Precautionary Measures to be followed while attending the Forty Sixth
Annual General Meeting of the Company:-

Wearing mask at all times

Temperature check- up at the entrance of the venue
Washing/sanitising hands at the entrance of the venue
Maintaining social distancing at all times

ArogyaSetu app installed on the phone



RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED
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(FKA: The Right Address Limited)

Route Map to the Venue of Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting of Right Innuva Limited

“Sagar Estate”,

2, Clive Ghat Street,
Kolkata - 700001
n
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AgI'CIWG| Tondon & CO. Room No.: 7, 1% Floor, 59 Bentinck Street

(Formerly: Agrawal Sanjay & Company) Kolkata - 700 069
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Website: www.agrawalsanjay.com
Firm Registration No. : 329088E E-mail id: agrawaltondon2019@gmail.com

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Members of RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Right Innuva Know-How
Limited ("the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31
2021, its profit including other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our Responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the "Code of Ethics”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31 2021. There were
no key audit matters and so the same have not been commented upon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
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of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error,

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Caompany's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, ar the override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the financial year ended
March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Crder, 2016 (‘the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure - A”,
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder, as amended,

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give
our separate report in “Annexure - B” of this report;

¢g. Inour opinion and as per the explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration paid /
provided by the Company, if any, to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;
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h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Financial Statements;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 329088E

Sanjay Agrawal
Partner

Membership No. 056902
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 315" August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAAG 5461
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Annexure — A
To the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone financial statements of
Right Innuva Know-How Limited

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
Report of even date]

(1) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.
b) The Company has a regular pragramme of physical verification of its Property, Plant &
Equipment by which Property, Plant & Equipment are verified in a phased manner. In
accordance with this programme, certain Property, Plant & Equipment were verified during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.
¢) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the Company.

(if) According to the information and explanations provided to us and in our opinion, the
management has conducted physical verification of inventories at reasonable intervals during
the year. As informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has granted loans
to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

a  According to information and explanations provided to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions on
which such loans have been granted are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

b.  The principal and interest in respect of such loans are repayable on demand.

¢ According to infarmation and explanations provided to us in respect of the aforesaid
loans, there is no overdue amount of loans outstanding as on balance sheet date.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and
investments.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) As informed to us, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried
out by the Company.

a. The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Cess and Other Statutory Dues applicable to it.

b. According to the information and explanations provided to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales
Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Cess and Other
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Statutory Dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(Vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks, financial institutions and debenture
holders during the year.

(i) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations provided by
the management, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer including debt instruments and term loans.

(ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the Financial Statements and according to the information and explanations provided by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by
the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(%) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xi) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xil)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xir) According to the information and explanations provided to us, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiiiy  The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is not required to
get registered under Section 45-|A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 329088E

B
Sanjay Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 056902
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31° August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAAG5461
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Annexure - B

To the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone financial statements of
Right Innuva Know-How Limited

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under "Report on other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements” in our
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Right Innuva Know-How Ltd
(“the Company") as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with autherisations of management and directors of the
company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 329088E

Smerfic) Py
Sanjay Agrawal
Partner

Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 315" August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAAG 5461



RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

(Formerly: The Right Address Ltd.)
(CIN : L51109WB1974PLC029635)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2021

{(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

MNote As at As at
No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
l. ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 0.39 D.53
b) Financial Assets
i Investments 3 5,365.81 5,264.88
ii. Leans 4 41539 416.81
iil. Other Financial Assets L} 13.85 13.55
Total Non-Current Assets 5,795.24 5,695.77
2. Current Assets
a) Inventories [:] 204.13 204 13
t) Financial Assets
iy Trade Receivables 7 46.05 458.01
iiy Cash & Cash Equivalents 8 86.29 3782
¢) Current Tax Asssets (Net) 9 4.79 13.78
d) Other Current Asssets 10 0.73 463
Total Current Assets 351.899 308 37
Total Assets 6,147.23 6,004.14
Il. EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. Equity
a) Equity Share Capital 11 233.52 233.52
b) Other Equity 12 (4,280.24) (4,401.98)
Total Equity (4,056.72) (4,168.46)
2. Liabilities
MNon-Current Liabilities:
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings 13 349.42 331.82
iiy Other Financial Liabilities 14 32.00 MN.75
b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Met) 15 87464 B74.64
c} Other Non-Current Liabilities 16 30.39 11.81
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,286.45 1,249.82
Current Liabilities:
a) Financial Lizbilities
1. Borrowings 13 8,802.97 8,807.76
ii. Other Financial Liabilities 17 14.33 12.84
b) Other Current Liabilities 18 0.20 218
Total Current Liabilities 8,817.50 B.922.78
Total Equity & Liabilities 6,147.23 6,004.14

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

adopted by the Company and Notes forming 1-36

part of the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

As perour report of even date attached.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E ) 7
§w«~1‘w“1 ‘ "T‘/ 5
Lalit Talwar (DIN : 06745581)
(Sanjay Agrawal) Director

Partner

) \
Membership No. 056902 (b
. M (5032

Place: Kolkata
Manoj Bose (DIN :M1331860)

Dated: 31st August, 2021 Director




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

(Formerly: The Right Address Lid.)
(CIN * L51109WB1974PLC029535)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(Amount in ' Lakhs)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
INCOME:

I. Revenue from Operations 18 87.91 21585
Il. Dther Income 20 23533 31,85
ll. Total Revenue (1 +11) 323.24 247.80
IV. EXPENDITURE:

Changes in Inventories 21 - 142.42
Maintenance Expenses 22 62.22 103.18
Employee Benefit Expenses 23 4.90 6.24
Finance Costs 24 33.52 35.09
Depreciation 2 0.14 0.20
Other Expenses 25 7.31 18.26
Total Expenses 108.09 305.36
V. Profit/ Loss before exceptional items and tax (lll- IV} 21515 {57.56)
Exceptional ltems: * =
Profit [ {Loss) before tax 215,15 (57.56)
VI Tax Expenses
- Current Tax - -
- Deferred Tax - - {312.22) (312.22)
VIl Profit  (Loss) for the year (V - VI) 215.15 254.66
Other Comprehensive Income
VI, Other Comprehensive Income not to  be
reclassified to profit or (loss) in subseguent
Fair Value gain on equity instruments (103.42) -
Income Tax Related to Above - -
Other Comprghensive Income for the year (103.42) . .
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 111.73 254.66
VIIl Earnings per Equity Share: 27
(1) Basic 478 10.90
(2) Diluted 478 10.90

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
adopted by the Company and Noeles forming part 1-36
of the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes form an integral parl of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached,

For Agrawal Tondon & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E

wp"f"“ﬂ —

gm Lalit Talwar (DIN : 06745581)
Director

(Sanjay Agrawal)

Partner

: -
Membership No. 056902 M MY 5 05

Place: Kolkata
Manoj Bose (DIN : 01331860

Dated: 31st August, 2021 Director




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

(Formerly: The Right Address Ltd.)

{CIN : L51108WB1974PLC029635)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March,2021

A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Nos. Amount
As at 01st April, 2019 23,35,229 233.52
Changes during the year = -
As at 31st March, 2020 23,35,229 233.52
Changes during the year =

As at 31st March, 2021 23,35,229 233.52

B) Other Equity

Amount (T in Lakhs)

Amount (¥ in Lakhs)

Reserve & Surplus Items of OCI

Particulars Securities Retained Total
; : Other Items
Premium Earnings

Balance as at 01st April, 2019 600.00 {5,041.61) 20.93 (4,420.68)
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 254 66 254 66
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (235.98) (235.95)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 6500.00 (5,022.91) 20.93 (4,401.98)
Frofit / (Loss) for the year - 215.15 21515
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (103.42) (103.42)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 600.00 (4,807.76) (82.49) (4,290.24)

As per our report of even date attached.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E

(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner
Membership Mo, 056902

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31st August, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

\
N,

Lalit Talwar (DIN : 06745681)

Director

M aney rbos.

Manoj Bose (DIN * 01331860)

Director




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

(Formerly: The Right Address Ltd.)
(CIN_ L51109WB1974PL C029535)

Cash Flow § for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(Amount in % Lakhs)

J31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

A, Cash flow from Operating Activities:

Net Profit before Tax and Exceptional items: 21615 {57.58)
a) Depreciation 014 020
b} Inierest Received (30.97) 131.42)
¢} Finance Cost - 33.50
) OCI Effect on Sale of Investments (103.42) [235.98)

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 30.91 [289.24)

Adustments for
1) Financial Assets Non-Current (100 84) 32895
2) Oiher Current Assels 390 (3.47)

3) Other Financial Assats (0.10) 0490
4) Trade Recelvables - Current 187 14.28
5) Inventories - 142 .42
G) Other Non-Currenl liabilities 1859 (16:21)
7) Current Tax Assets a93 3.68
8) Other Financial Liabilities - Non Current 17.8D (23.24)
4 Current Financial Ligbilhes 1.50 6.48

10} Trade Payables - (1.83)

11} Other Currenl Liabilities (1.98) (50.27) 161 46405

Cash generated from operations 30.64 174.82

Direct Taxes Paid (net off refunds) = .

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 30.64 174.82

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Interest Received 30.97 31.42
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities 30.97 3142

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activites:

a) Borrowings - Currant (4.79) {186.289)

b) Borrowings - Non-Current 0.25 -

c] Loans Given - Current 1.40 (28.59)

d) Finance Costs - (35.50)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (3.13) {250.99)
D. Met changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents 50.47 {44.75)
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalent - at commencemearnt 3782 B2.56
Cash and Cash Equivalent - al close 96.29 ir.az
Nates:

a. Theabove Cash Flow Staterment has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out In the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ing-45-7) - Cash Flow Statemant.

b. Paticulars As al As at
31st March 31st Mareh
2021 2020
Cash & Cash Equivalents comprises of:
Cash on Hand 366 275
Balances with Banks:
- in Current Accounts 9263 as507
Cheques, draftin hand
Cash & Cash Equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 96.29 3r.82
c. As at HNon-Cash Changes As at
Particulars Cash flows i
31.03.2020 FairValue | o\ cificatio | 31.03.2021
changes
Borrowings - Non Current 331.62 17.60 - - 349.42
Borrowings - Currant 8,907.76 (4.79) - - §,902.97

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached,

For Agrawal Tonden & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 329088E

M—' | ) 1
Corqry P
MM/' Lalit Talwar (DIN : 06745581}

{Sanjay Agrawal) Director
Partner

v
Membership No. 056802 'vt AN—[ /ﬁ m

Place: Kolkata
Manoj Bose (DIN : 01331860)

Dated: 31st August, 2021 Directcr




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED
(Formerly: The Right Address Lid.)
(CIN: L51109WB1974PLC029635)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Right Innuva Know-How Limited (“the Company") is a public limited Company incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Company is primarily engaged in the Trading in Securities and Real Estate.
The registered office of the Company is located at Sagar Estate, 3rd Floor, 2, Clive Ghat Street,
Kolkata-700 001.

The Financial Statements for the year ended March 31%, 2021 were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorized for issue on 31stAugust, 2021.

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been ccnsistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of Preparation

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("Act") read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and the relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter. These financial statements are prepared in accordance under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair value at the end of each accounting period.

Standards issued but not effeclive:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘“MCA”") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which weuld have been applicable from April 01,
2021.

On March 24, 2021, the MCA through & notification, amended Schedule Ill of the
Companies Act, 2013. The amendment revised Division |, Il and Il of Schedule Ill and are
applicable from April 01, 2021. Key Amendments relating to Division Il which relate to
Companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 are:

i) Balance Sheet Amendments:

» Lease Liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head Financial
Liabilities, duly distinguished as Current or Non-Current.

o Certain additional disclosures in the Statement of Changes in Equity such as
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors and re-stated
balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

¢ Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

o Specified format for ageing schedule of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables,
Capital Work-in-progress and Intangible Assets under Development,

¢ If a Company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was
borrowed from Banks and financial institutions, then disclosure of details
where it has been used.

¢ Specific Disclosure under additional regulatory requirement such as
compliance with Approved Schemes of Arrangements, Compliance with
Number of Layers of Companies, Title Deeds of Immovable Properties not
held in the Name of Companies, Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Related Parties, details of Benami

Property held, etc. &
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RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED
(Formerly: The Right Address Ltd.)
(CIN; L51109WB1974PLC029635)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

(b)

(d)

(c)

ii) Statement of Profit and L.oss Amendmeris:

e Additional Disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR),
undisclosed income and Crypto or Virtual Currency, specified under the head
Additional Information in the notes forming part of the Standalone Financial
Statements.

These Amendrnents are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect
to them as required by law.

Foreign currencies
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to
assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings.

Revenue recognition
The Company derives revenue on trading of Securities and Real Estate.

Revenue is recognised on satisfaclion of performance obligation at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expects to ke entitled in exchange of selling of
preducts to customers.

The Company’s performance obligation is on frading of Securities and Real Estate.

The Company has adopted IND AS 115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ which
introduces a five-step approach to measunng and recognising revenue frorn contracts with
customers. Under IND AS 115, revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance
chligation at an amount that refiects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Contract assets and Contract Liability )

Ravenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which we referred as
unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities
(which we refer as unearned revanue)

Interast income is recognized using the effactive interest method. All other incomes are -
recognised on acecrual basis,

Infsome Tax . S

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
nave heen enacted or substartially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled. -
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(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever the events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with the financial institutions, other short term,
highly liquid investments with eoriginal maturities of three months or less (except the
instruments which are pledged) that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or market price in case of securities and at lower of
cost or net realisable value in other cases.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liakilities are initially measured at fair valua. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducled from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets

Investment and other financial assets
(i) Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories —

* Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other cemprehensive

income cr through profit or Icss), and

-
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(if)

(ifi}

(iv}

Those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. FFor investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity insiruments, this
will depend cn whether the company has made an irrevocable election zt the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at the fair value through other
ccmprehensive income.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividends from such invastments are recognised in profit or loss as other
inceme vihen the company's right tc receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured al FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company appliés the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 Financial Instruments, which requires exnected lifetime losses to be recognised frem
initizl recognition of the receivables,

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when

»  The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset:
or

» Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Financial Liabilities and equity Instruments

(i} Classification as debt or squity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial lizbilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contrastual arrangement.

(
#
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(i) Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound insirurnents (convertible instruments) issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
cornponent is estimated- using the prevailing market interest rate for a similar non-
convertible instrument. This aniount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument'’s
maturity date. The equity component is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

« The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in aczardance with
Ind-AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Li:ab}lities and Contingent Assets; and

« the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policies,

Firrancial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other financial
liabilities'.

Financiz! Liabilities at FVTPL
Financia! liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if.

e it has been acquired or incurred piincipally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the
near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit taking; or

» itis a derivative that iz noi designated and effeclive as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may alsc be designated as
at FVTEL upon initial recognition if:
¢  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
incensistency that would otherwise erise; or
« the financial liability forms part of 2 Company of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its performance is eveluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Cempany's dccumented risk management or investment
strategy, and infermatign about the Companying is provided internally on that basis;
or :

o
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« it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind-AS
109 Financial Instruments permits the entire combined contract to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability.

(vi) Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

(vii) Offsetting financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than
Freehold Land) and accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost of Property, Plant &
Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and other non-
refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Interest and other financial charges on loans
borrowed specifically for acquisition of capital assets are capitalised till the start of
commercial production. Depreciation is provided as per the written down value method
based on the useful lives of assets and are in line with the requirements of Part C of
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date is classified as Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assets and
the cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital Work in
Progress’. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the Financial
Statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The method of depreciation, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end.
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@i

(k)

(M

(m)

Intangible assets

Software

Cost of software is amortized cver a period of 6-10 years, being the estimated useful life as
per the management estimates. The Cost of Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful life.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as
current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to'the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Cempany has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, for which it is probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when the
Company has a possible obligation or a present obligation and it is probable that a cash
outflow will not be required to seltle the obligation. Provisions & Contingent Liabilities are
revalued at each Balance Sheet date.

Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans
The company pays prevident fund contributions fo oublicly adminiztered provident funds
as per local regulations. The company has not further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due.

(if) Other long-term employee benefits obligations
The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and
non-accumulating in nature. The Company's liability is actuarially determined using the
Projected Unit Credit mathod at the end of the year in accordance with the provision of
Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined
benefit plan in its balance sheet as liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements
of the net defined benefit liabilitv/(asset) are recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss.

(itiy Post-employment obligations
The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, comprising of Gratuity
fund with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's liability is actuarially
determined using the Projected Unit Credit rnethed at the end of the year in accordance
with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Bensfits. The Company recognizes the net
chligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and
losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are
recognized in other compiehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in
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subsequent periods. The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the
yields computed by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation is recognized in other comprechensive income. The effect of any plan
amendments are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

(n) Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share (‘EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the
year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For

computing Diluted earnings per share potential equity shares are added to the above
weighted average number of shares.
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3) Investments (Non-Current): Amountin ¥ Lakhs

Particulars Face 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Value Mos. Amount Nos. Amount
Investment in Equity instruments (fully paid-up)
A) Quoted
a. Measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income
Madanlal Lid, 10 6,35,000 - 6,35,000 -
MiJ Developers Ltd. 10 291,162 799.65 291,162 799.85
MKJ Enterprises Ltd, 10 429 o | 429 1.1
Total (A) 800.768 800.76
B) Unquoted
a. Measured at Cost
Investment in Associates
Ishan Housing Projects Ltd. 10 55,000 85.00 85,000 85.00
Total (a) = 85.00 85.00
b. Measured at Falr Value through Other
Comprehensive Income
Bengal Bonded Warshouse Limiled 12.50 41,982 251.056 41,982 251.05
Dankuni Projects Ltd. 10 4,80,200 86.87 4,80,200 86.87
Keventer Agro Ltd. 10 - - 1,77,083 120.42
Keventer Projects Ltd. 10 1,30,020 3,259.20 1,30,020 3,259.20
MKJ Tradex Lid, 10 3,20,000 629.24 3,20,000 529,34
Sasmal Infrastructure Pyt. Lid. 10 25,000 2019 25,000 2019
Total (b) 4,246.65 4,367.07
c. [Measured at Falr Value through Profit or Loss
Adia Tracom Pvt.Ltd, 10 1,500 0.15 1,500 0.15
Krishna Futuretrade Pvt.Ltd 10 1,500 015 1,500 0.15
Navotech Exim Pvi.Ltd. 12 1,500 0.15 1,500 0.15
Nirmalkunj Tracom Pwt.Lid. i 1,500 015 1,500 015
Rajesh Dealtrade Pvt.|td. 10 1,500 0.15 1,500 0.15
Shew Merchandise Pvt.Lid 10 1.500 0.15 1,500 0.15
Shivamvani Distributors Pvi. Ltd, 16 1,560 0.15 1,500 015
Shyamal Dealtrade Pwvi. Lid. 10 1,500 0.15 1,500 015
Simplex Estates Pvt. Ltd. 10 20000 2.00 20,000 2.00
Total (c) 3.20 3.20
Investment in Preference Instruments:
Keventer Capital Lid 10 8,256,387 - 8,25,387 -
{0% lon-Convertible Preference Sharas issuad
in the ratio of 14:3 equity shares of Keventer Agro
Lid in marsuance of aomargar)
Keventer Global Pvl. Lid. 100 2,21,353 221.35 - -
(Receivad for consideration ofherwisa than in
cath pursuant fo Sale of Equity Shares of
Keventer Agra Lid.)
Total (d)’ 22135 _ -
Total - B (atb+c+d) 4,556.20 4,455.27
Total (A + B) 5,356.96 5,256.03
C) Investment in Immovable Property Sq. ft Sq. ft
Commerciel Space 360 8.85 360 8.85
8.85 885
TOTAL(A+B+C) T 538581 T 5,264.88
Aggregate market value quoted investments 800 76 B0O.76
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments 4,565.05

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of Invesiment -

Since the company intends to sell the immovable propery in the near future, hence the same has not been
classified as "Immovable Property” in Balance Sheet.

The nzwly purchased shares are not fransferred in the rame of the Company as on the reporling date,

4,464.12
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As at As at
31st Mareh, 2021 31st March, 2020
4. Loans T in lakhs T in lakhs ?in lakhs % in lakhs
Unsecured, Considered Good
Loans Given
- to Related Parties 131.02 112.79
- to others 269.88 400.91 287.59 400.38
Security Deposit 14.48 16.43
415.39 416.81
5. Other Financial Assets
Advances 13.65 13.55
13.65 13.55
6. Inventories:
Particulars Face Value 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
T Nos. T in lakhs Nos. T in lakhs
A. Securities:
Equity Shares:
i) Quoted:
MKJ Developers Lid. 10 12,300 5.52 12,300 5.52
Quadrant Televentures Ltd. 1 25,00,000 4.75 25,00,000 475
10.27 ) 10.27
ii) Unquoted:
Samrat Bicycles Lid. 10 1,000 0.08 1,000 0.08
0,08 0.08
Total(A) 10.35 1035
B. Real Estate: Sq. ft Sq. ft
Commercial Units 3,848.00 193.78 5,795.33 192.78
Total(B) 193.78 193.78
Total (A+B) 204.13 204.13
7. Trade Receivables
As at As at
___31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
T in lakhs Tin lakhs
Unsecured, Considered Good 46.05 48.01
. 46.05 _ 48.01
8. Cash & Cash Equivalents
As at As at
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
T in lakhs 7in lakhs
Balance at Banks 92.63 35.07
Cash on Hand 3.66 275
96.29 37.8%
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9.

10.

1.

Current Tax Assets (Net)

As at
31-Mar-21
Tin lakhs
Tax Deducted at Source 4.59
Income Tax Payments 0.20
4.79
Other Current Assets
As at
31-Mar-21
T in lakhs
Goods and Service Tax Input %
Prepaid Expenses 0.73
0.73

Equity Share Capital

Particulars 31st March, 2021

As at
31-Mar-20
Tin lakhs

13.78

__ 1378

As at
31-Mar-20
Zin lakhs

3.80

0.83
4.63

31st March, 2020

Nos. {in lakhs
Authorised :

Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 23,50,000 235.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up:
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.
(Of the above 6,685,229 Equity Shares each fully paid

up have been issued for consideration other than
cash persuant to a Scheme of Amalgamation)

Total

23,35,229 233.52

233.52

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:

Nos, T in lakhs

23,50,000 235.00

23,35,229 233.52

23352

31st March, 2020

Particulars 31st March, 2021

At the beginning of the year 23,35229
Changes during the year "
At the end of the year 23,35,229

The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
Name of the Shareholder

31st March, 2021

23,35,229

23,35,229

31st March, 2020

No. of Shares % held
Apex Enterprises (India) Limited 2,90,0c0 12.42%
Madanlal Limited 3,90,350 16.72%
MKJ Developers Limited 2,50,000 10.71%
MKJ Enterprises Limited 5,76,739 24.70%

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to the Equity Shares:

No. of Shares % held
2,90,000 12.42%
3,90,350 16.72%
2,50,000 10.71%
5,76,739 24.70%

The Equity Shares of the Company, having par value of Rs. 10/- per share, rank pari-passu In all respects includin

voting rights and entitlement to dividend
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31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

12. Other Equity %in lakhs % in lakhs T in lakhs T in lakhs
Reserves and Surplus
Securities Premium:
As per last accounts 600.00 600.00
Retained Earnings:
As per last accounts (5,022.91) (5,041.61)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 21515 254.66
Adjustment for sale of investments - 235.66
(4,807.76) (5,022.91)
items of OCI
Equity Instruments through OCI:
As per last accounts 20.93 20.83
Add: Comprehensive Income during the year (103.42) -
Balance as at year-end (82.49) 20.93
(4,290.24) __(4.401.98)
13. Borrowings:
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Non-Currentl Current Total Non-Current Current Total
Tin lakhs 2in lzkhs Tin lakhs Zin lakhs Zin lakhs Tin lakhs
Secured Loans:
From @ Bank
against property 348.42 £4.42 4073.84 331.62 27.24 358.66
Unsecured Loans:
From Related Padies - 3,847.93 3,847.93 - 8,879.90 8,879.90
From Others = 5 000 62 5,000.62 - 0.62 0.62
- 8,848.55 8,848.55 - 8,880.52 8,880.52
Total 349.42 8,902.97 9,252.39 331.62 8,907.76 9,239.38
* Loan against property taken from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. To be repaid in equated monthly instalment within
120 months
14. Other Financial Liabilities (Non-Current) Ji-Mar-214 31-Mar-20
T in lakhs T in lakhs
Security Deposits Received _32.00 _ 31.75
. 32.00 31.75
15. Deferred Tax Liabilities
Particulars Balance Changes Balance
as at for the year as at
01-Apr-20 2019-20 31-Mar-21
Tin lakhs Tin lakhs T in lakhs
Deferred tax on gain of investments (874.64) - (874.64)
(874.64) - (874.64)

Note- Since It is not probable that future taxzble profits will be available against which deductible temporary

differences may be utilized, hence ne 2afs

red tax astets have been recognised.
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18.

15.

20.

24.

16. Other Non-Current Liablilities 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Zin lakhs T in lakhs
Advance against Sale of Property 8.87 B.37
Other Advances 21.62 3.44
30.39 11.81
. Other Financial Liabilities 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
< in lakhs % in lakhs
Liabilities for Expenses 14.33 12.84
14.33 12.84
Other Current Liabilities 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
% in lakhs Zin lakhs
Statutory Liabilities 0.20 2.18
0.20 218
Revenue from Operations 2020-21 2019-20
T in lakhs Tin lakhs
Sales
Sale of Real Eslale - 109.67
Other Operating Income:
Rent received 28.81 30.89
Maintenance received 18.79 18.18
Electricity Charges Reimbursement 40.31 87.91 57.23 106.28
87.91 215.95
Other Income 2020-21 2019-20
Tin lakhs T in lakhs
Interest Received 30.88 31.43
Profit on Sale of Investments 204.35 0.42
235.33 31.85
Changes in Inventory 2020-21 2019-20
T in lakhs 7 in lakhs
Inventory at close 204.13 204.13
Inventory at beginning 204.13 346.55

142.42
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22. Maintenance Expenses 2020-21 2019-20
{in lakhs 1 in lakhs
Electricity Charges 43.81 103.15
Other Maintenance expenses 18.41 -
. 62.22 103.15_
23. Employee Benefit Cxpenses 2020-21 2019-20
T in lakhs T in lakhs
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 4.90 6.24
4.90 6.24
24, Finance Costs 2020-21 2019-20
T in lakhs Tin lakhs
Interest Paid 33.42 34.97
Other Finance Costs 0.10 0.12
3352 ] 35.09
25. Other Expenses 2020-21 201920
¥ in lakhs 2 in lakhs
Rent paid 0.18 0.18
Rates and taxes 0.05 1.15
Brokerage and Commission - 217
Advertisement - 0.1 0.31
Bank Charges 0.05 0.03
Filing Fees 0.05 0.79
Legal and Professional Charges 2.3 6.31
Listing Fees 0.25 0.25
Membership & Subscription 0.13 0.13
Printing and Stationery : 0.27 0.42
Postage Expenses - 0.08
Telephone Charges . 0.10 0.10
Travelling & Conveyance 0.50 0.77
Share Depository Charges 0.32 0.41
Payment to Auditors:
- for Statutory Audit 0.60 0.60
- for Tax Audit - -
- for Certifications 0.23 0.83 0.33 0.93
Repair and Maintenance to Building - 0.22
Goods and Service Tax Paid 1.11 1.79
Miscellanecus Expenses 1.05 2.22
731 18.26

26. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
There are no Micro, Smail & Medium Entercrises, to whom the company owes dues, which are culstanding for
more than 45 days as at 31st March 2021. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro. Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
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27.

28.

29,

Earning per Share (EPS)

Sl. Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
No.

a) Profit/ (Loss) after Taxation ( Tin lakhs) 215.15 254.66
b) Weighted Average No.of Equity Shares ( Nos.) 23,35,229 23,35,229
c) Nominal vaiue per Equity Share (%) 10.00 10.00
d) Earning per Equity Share-Basic/Diluted (a/b {Z Y 9.21 10.91

Reconciliation of Tax Expense and accounting profit multiplied by India's Tax rate :
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Profit before Tax (¥ in lakhs) 215.15 254.66
Applicable Tax Rate 26.00% 25.75%
Tax Expense as per applicable {ax rate NIL NIL
Tax effect of :
Permanent disallowances 0.00 0.00
Exempted Income 0.00 0.00
Income Taxed at different rate NIL NIL
Lapsing of past losses / MAT Entitlement NIL NIL
Others NiL NIL
Total Tax expenses NIL NIL
Tax expenses recognised in Profit or Loss NIL NIL
Effective tax rate NIL NIL

Related Party Disclosures:

(a) Names of the related parties with whom significant relations exist and transactions have taken place during the

year are given below:-

(i) Enterprises/Associates where key management personnel is able to exercise significant influence:

Dankuni Projects Lid.
Ishan Housing Projects Lid.
Mantu Housing Projects Lid.
MiKJ Developers Ltd.

(it} Key Management Personnel : Position

Ms. Debjari Chatterjee Director

Mr. Lalit Talwar Whaolitime Director & CFO
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jalan Director

Mr, Manoj Bose Director

Ms. Pritha Basu Director

MKJ Enterprises Lid.
Portside Estate Ltd,
Sarvesh Heusing Projects Pvt. Lid
Twenty First Century Securities Ltd.

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties in the ordinary course of business !
Nature of transactions Related parties as refarred in Total
Associates / Key
Enterprises | Management
Personnel
a (i) above a (ii) above
T in lakhs Tin lakhs T in lakhs
1) Unsecured Boriowings:
Balanca as at 1st April, 2020 8,879.90 - 8,879.6C
(9,067.90) - (9,067.90)
Taken during the year 76.03 - 76.03
(47.00) - (47.00)
Paid during the year 5,108.00 - 5,108.00
(235.00) - (235.00)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 3,847.93 - 3,847.93
(8,879.90) - (8,879.90)
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|
Nature of transactions Related parties as referred in Total
Associates / Key
Enterprises | Management
Personnel
a (i) above a (ii) above
T in lakhs 7 in lakhs T in lakhs
2) Loans Given:
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 112,79 - 112,79
(103.53) - (103.53)
Taken during the year 18.85 = 18.85
(9.26) - (9.26)
Paid during the year 0.61 - 0.61
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 131.02 - 131.02
(112.79) - (112.79)
3) Rent Paid 0.18 - 0.18
(0.18) - (0.18)
4) Interest Paid - - -
5) Interest Received 11.19 - 11.19
6) Directors' Remuneration - 1.20 1.20
- (1.20) (1.20)
7) Directors' Siiting Fees - 0.61 0.61
- 0.39 0.39

Figures in brackel indicate figures relating to previous year.

30. Segment Reporting:

In Compliance with Indian Accounting Standard AS - 108 on Segment Reporting issued by ihe Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Segment Information is given below:

Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2021 2020
T in lakhs T in lakhs
1. Revenue (including taxes on Revenue)
Real Estate 87.91 92.96
Securities - I
Total Revenue 87.91 92.96
2. Results
Real Estate 25,66 21.93
Securities (0.32) (0.45)
Segment Result 25.34 21.48
Unallocable (Expenses) net off Unallocable Insome (45.41) (49.33)
Operating Profit / (Loss) (20.07) (27.85)
Interest Income 235.33 29.82
Interest (Expenses) - -
Depreciation 0.14 0.22
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 215.12 1.74

Taxation for the year

Profit after tax and before exceptional items

Exceplional Items

21512
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Net Profit / (Loss)

3. Other Informations:

Segment Assets
Real Estate
Securities

Unallocated Corporate Assets
Total Assets

Segment Liabilities
Real Estate
Securities

Unalioczled Corporate Ligbilities
Total Lizbilities

21512

248.68
5,367.32
5,616.00

531.23

' 6,147.23

411.81

411.81
9,792.14

10,203.95

1.74

385.96

5,614.30

6,004.25
504.06

6,508.31

405.18

405.18

9,767.42

10,472.60

31. The accumulated losses of the Company as at year-end are in excess of the Net Worth of the Company. The Net
Worth of the Company has completely bezn eroded. The Company has been incurring losses regularly. The
Company has incurred losses in the immediately preceeding financial year.

Having regard to lhe continuous support of Group Companies & considering the sale of Investments and
Inventories =t a future date. the Financial Statements of the Company are prepared on a Going Concern Basis.

32. Fair Value Measurerments

A) The fallowing table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabiiities

including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying Amourt Falt Valug
{ FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised (23t Total Level 1 Level 2 Leuel 3 Tetzl
11 [Fhuasccial Assets anc. Lisailitles 25 at Ma:ch 31,
4. {harn Currant Enarcial Assls
]'nvp‘.tn*nm in Erul.y Shares- Ousted 200.76 £00.76 8076 80076 |
1 Imwestian in Eowity Shares- Unquated - 4 24665 ER 20 433485 4 246,55 88.20 43485
investrent in Praf_rence fhaves 21135 1135 22135 22135
Investmet in lmmovable Property 185 485 885 885
Other Financial Agsats 41539 41539 415,39 415.39
b. | Curre nt Finanial Assets
Trade recevanies 46,05 46.05 46.05 46.05
Cash and Cask equvalents 96,10 56,39 96.20 36.29
Tetal d 5,047.41 87012 532353 5,047.81 876.12 5,923.51
It. INan-Current Financlal tlabilites
Boerowings 34342 3ag942 349.42 49.42
. | Current Financial Liabilitles ;
Barrowings £,907.97 8,502.97 8,002.37 §,900.97
(Ochier Firianelal liabil ties 1433 1433 1433 1433
Total - . £,917.30 9,252.39 §,252.3% §,252.39
1, |Financial Assets and Liabilities 25 2t March 31,
13, |Nan-Current Financial Assets
in Equity Shares- Ouate:| A07.76 BM0JE 200.76 - 83076
Instennt in Eouiy Shares- Jaguoied - 43670 BR.EY 445527 435107 £2.20 445527
Investment in mmgvaole Progerty H 485 885 BES 285
iher Financial Assets 417 81 41651 416,81 416.81
b. | Current Financiz! Assets
Trade recavables 46.01 4801 48.01 48.01
'Cash and Cash eduivaients : 3782 1782 3182 82
5 5,167.63 38559 50752 5,167.83 599.65 5,760.54
. |Non-Current Finaneial Lishilites
| |dercwings y 33162 33162 33L62 1162
. {Curient Financia! tabilit i
Borrowings 3,961.78 3.907.75 8,807.76 &,907.76
Other Fnancia: habities 1224 1284 12.84 12.84
3 . §,920.60 5,233.38 9,239.38 9,233.38
|
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B) Measurement of Fair Value
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimale the fair values:

a) The carrying amount of trade receivables trade payables, deposits, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalent including current bank balances and other liabllities are considered to be the same as their fair
values,due to current and short term nature of such balances.

b) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the company based on
parameters such as interest rates and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this
evaluation allowances if required, are taken to account for expecied losses of these receivables,

¢) The fair value of investment in equity shares other than subsidiaries were calculated based on cash flows
discounted using the current lending rate. They are classified as Level-3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy
due to inclusion of unobservable inputs.

d) In unquoted equity instruments where most recent information is not available, or where a wide range of
possible fair value measurements are present, cost has been considered to be the fair value.

C) Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments as referred to above have been classified into three categories
depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilites (Level-1 measurements) and lowest priority to

Level 1 Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments using quoted prices. These include listed equity
instruments and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded
in stock exchanges are valued using the closing prices as at the reporting period.

Level 2 ; Inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liabilitiy, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in Level 3.

33. Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company's cepital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structure and maximize shareholder value. The company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in the light of changes in economic cornditions, annual operating plans and long term and other
strategic invesiment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new share. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' to 'equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net
debt is defined as fotal liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and bank
balances. Equity comprises of equity including share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the

The company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 20:
Borrowings:

Current and Non Current . (Tin Lakhs) 9,252.29 8,239.38
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (¥in Lakhs) (96.29) (37.82)
Adjusted net debt (¥ in Lakhs) 9,156.10 9,201.56
Total Equity { ¥ in Lakhs) (4,056,72) (4,168.46)

Capital Gearing Ratio 1.83
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34. Financial Risk Management

The process of identification and evaluation of various risks inherent in the business environment and the
operations of the comapany and initiation of appropriate measures for prevention and/or mitigation of the same
are dealt with by the concerned operational heads under the overall supervision of the Managing Director of the
company. The Audit Committee periodically reviews the adequacy and efiicacy of the overall risk management
system. The Comapny's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business
strategies. The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls are operating effectively. Your company has adopted policies and procedures
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business . including adherence to the Comapny's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of
accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial statements.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instuments:
a) Credit Risk

b) Liquidity Risk

¢) Market Risk

A. Credit risk
- Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's trade and other receivebles.
The carrying amourit of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

i) Trade and other receivables
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the
aseel are estimated by adopting the simplified approach using a provision matrix. The loss rales are comouted

using a 'roll rate' method based on the probability of receivables progressing through successive stages till full
provision for the trade receivable is made,

ii The Compary held cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of ¢ 96.29 Lakhs =5 at March 31,
2021. (X 37.82 Lakhs as at March 31, 2020). The same are held with banks wit" gocd ciedit rating.

B. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilites that are settled by delivering cash or ancther financial asset. The Company's approach to
manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities as and
when they are due, both under normal and stressful conditions.

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at the reporting date. The
amounts are gross and undiscounted.

1 year or less 1-2 years More than 2 years Total
¥ in lakhs Tin lakhs ¥ in lakhs Tin lakhs

a) Contractual maturities of financial
liakilitics as on 31st March, 2021
Rorrowings - Non current 62.84 118.70 167.88 349.42
Borrowings - Current 8,502 97 8,902 97

b) Contractual maturities of financial
liabilities as on 31st March, 2020 ]
Borrowings - Non current 331.62 331.62
Borrowings - Current 8,907.76 8,907.76

C. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial assets will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The objective\of market risk management is to manage and contral risk exposure
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35.

36.

D. Interest Rate Risk and Sensitivity

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the long term debt
abligations with Floating rate of interest.

31st March, 2021 J1st March, 2020
T in lakhs Tin lakhs
Variable rate of Borrowing - -
Fixed rate of Borrowing 925239 9,239 38

Previous Year's figures have been re-grouped/ re-arranged wherever necessary.
Figures have been rounded off to Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs to 2 places of decimals
As per our report of even date attached.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Charlered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E (

S P-ol/ M"‘j’{ Lalit Talwar (DIN : 06745581)

Director
(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner
Membership No. 056902 M W VJ, sy
Manoj Bose (DIN : 01331860)
Director

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 31st August, 2021
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Right Innuva Know-How Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Right Innuva
Know-How Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company') and its associate
comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315 March 2021, the consolidated statement of
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of cash flows
and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other information of the associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including
India Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"), of the consolidated state of affairs of the Holding Company
and its associates as at March 315 2021, their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the
consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in the “Other Matters” paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as "the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and
consolidated changes in equity of the Group including its associates in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules issued there under,

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and of its associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
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accounting records, relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. »

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparation of the consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consoclidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

e« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial information of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the
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other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements should also include the Group's share of net loss after tax
(and other comprehensive loss) of Rs 0.42 lacs for the year ended 315 March 2021 but the same
has not been considered in the consolidated financial statements as the book value of investment is
Nil, in respect of an associate whose financial statements have not been audited by us or by other
auditors. These unaudited financial statements have been furnished to us by the management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it is relates to the aforesaid
associate is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not madified in respect of the above matters with respect to the financial
statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of

the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditor.




Agrawal Tondon & CO' Room No.: 7, 1¢ Floor, 59 Bentinck Street

(Formerly: Agrawdal Sanjay & Company) Kolkata - 700 049
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Website: www.agrawalsanjay.com
Firm Registration No. : 329088E E-mail id: agrawaliondon2019@gmail.com

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consoclidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash flow
statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant Rules
issued there under.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31% March 2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditors of its associate company,
none of the Directors of the Group and its associates is disqualified as on 315t March
2021 from being appointed as a Director of that Company in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure A" which is based on the auditors' reports of the Holding
Company and associate company. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial
reporting of those companies.,

(9) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statement

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable |osses.

i} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 329088E

Conrfrr A

Sanjay Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 315 August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAAHT939
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements' section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the
year ended 31t March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Right Innuva Know-How Limited (“the Holding Company") and its associate as of that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the
Holding Company and its associate, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial
Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its associate are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
control over financial reporting. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other
auditors of the associate company in terms of their report referred to in Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) perfain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
the consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and Directors of the Company, and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the consoclidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to one associate
company is based on the corresponding report of auditors of such Company.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 329088E

Conriert Py

Sanjay Agrawal
Partner

Membership No. 056902
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31% August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAAHT939



RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED
(Formerly: The Right Address Ltd.)
(CIN : L51109WB1974PLC029635)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2021

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Note As at As at
No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
I, ASSETS
1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 0.39 0.52
b) Financial Assets
i. Investments 3 5,280.81 5179.88
ii. Loans 4 415.39 416.71
ili. Other Financial Assets 5 13.55 13.85
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 571014 5,610.66
2. CURRENT ASSETS
a} Inventaries 6 20413 204.13
b} Financial Assets
i. Trade Receivables 7 46.05 48.02
il. Cash & Cash Equivalents 8 96.29 37.80
¢} Current Tax Asssets(Net) 9 4.79 13.78
d) Other Current Asssets 10 0.72 4.63
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 351.98 308.36
TOTAL ASSETS 6,062.11 5,919.02
Il. EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1. EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 11 233.52 233.52
b) Other Equity 12 (4.375.36) (4,487.10)
TOTAL EQUITY (4,141.84) (4,253.57)
2. LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings’ 13 381.42 363.36
b) Deferred Tax Liabilitias (Net) 14 874.64 874,64
c) Other Non-Current Liabilities 15 30.39 11.81
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,286.45 1,249.81
CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities
1. Borrowings 16 8.902.97 8,807.76
ii. Other Financial Liabilities 17 14.33 12.84
b) Other Current Liabilities 18 0.20 218
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,917.50 8,922.78
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 6,062.11 5,919.02
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
adopted by the Company and Notes forming 1-36
part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For Agrawal Tondon & Co. For and on behalt.l f the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 329088E (

-
7

>

Director

. ’ M Lalit Tal‘\:var (DIN : 06745581)
C gy P

(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31st August, 2021

|
Membership No. 056902 MW (3 ,3,2__

Manoj Bose (DIN : 01331860)

Director



RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

{Farmerly: The Right Address Ltd)
(CIN : LE1108WB1874PLC028635)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

(Amount in T Lakhs)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
INCOME:
|. Revenue from QOperations 19 87.91 21595
Il. Other Income 20 23533 3185
Il. Total Revenue (|1 +11) 323.24 247.79
IV. EXPENDITURE:
Changes in Inventaries 21 - 142.42
Maintenance Expenses 22 62.22 103,15
Employee Benefit Expenses 23 4.90 6.24
Finance Costs 24 33.52 35.10
Depreciation 2 D.14 020
Other Expenses 25 731 18.26
Total Expenses 108.09 305,37
V. Profit/{ Loss) before share of profit (loss) in Associates (lll- V) 215.15 (57.58)
Share of Profit or( logs) of Associates - -
Profit / (Loss) before tax 215.15 (57.58)
VI Tax Expenses - -312.22
VIl Profit f (Loss) for the year (V - VI) 215.15 254,64
Other Comprehensive Income
VIll. Other Comprehensive Income not to be
reclassified to profit or (loss) in subseguent
Fair Value gain on equity instruments -103.42
Income Tax Related to Above =
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -103.42
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 111.73 254.64
VIl Earnings per Equity Share: 27
{1) Basic 9.21 (39.33)
(2) Diluted 921 (39.33)
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 1-36

adopted by the Company and Notes forming part
of the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of thecosnolidated financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For Agrawal Tondon & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountanls
Firm Registration No. 329088E

. Ar N«"‘”‘Qx ]
gﬂ’V“V' [ T{ Lalit Talwar (DIN : 06745581)
Director

o Lo

Manoj Bose (DIN : D1331860)
Director

(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Membership Mo. 056802
Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31st August, 2021




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

{Formerly: The Right Address Lid.)

[CIN : L51109WB1974PLC029635)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March,2021

A) Equity Share Capital

Particulars Nos. Tin Lakhs
As at 01st April, 2019 23,35,2289 233.52
Changes during the year R =
As at 31st March, 2020 23,35229 233.52
Changes during the year - -
As at 31st March, 2021 23,35,229 233.52
B) Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus Items of OCI
Particulars Securities Retained Equity Instruments Total
Premium Earnings through OCI
Zin Lakhs % in Lakhs {in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Balance as at 01st April, 2019 600.00 (5,127.72) 20.93 {4,506.79)
Profit / (Loss) for the year 254.64 254,64
Other Comprehensive Income for the ye - (235.96) 1.00 (234.98)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 600.00 (5,109.04) 21.93 (4,487.11)
Prafit / (Loss) for the year - 21515 21615
Other Comprehensive Income for the yd - (103.42) (103.42)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 600.00 (4,893.88) (81.49) (4,375.37)
As per our report of even date attached.
For Agrawal Tondon & Co, Forand on behalf of.the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E ;
7
!EQ = G
< 3 A prsrs
M""“] TV Lalit Talwar (DIN : 05745581)
Director
(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner
Membership No. 056902 / ‘1 a: ; i :
Place: Kolkata y/ @ond% l\{.c { s
S ¢ Manoj Bose (DIN : 01331860)

Dated: 31st August, 2021

/&

Director

il f:( Kolkata




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

{Formerly: The Right Address Lid.}

(CIN : L51109WB1974PL.C029635)

Consclidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities:

Net Profit before Tax and Exceptional items:
a) Depreciation
b) Inlerest Received
o) Profil on Sale of invesimenis
d) Fair Value Gain an Equily Instruments
e) Finance Cost
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes
Adjustments for;
1) Financial Assels Non-Current
2) Other Currenl Assets
3) Trade Receivables - Current
4) Inventories
§) Other Mon-Current liabilities
6) Other Financial Liabilities - Men Current
7} Currenl Financial Liabilities
B) Trade Payables
49} Other Current Liabilities
10} Profit or loss of Associates
Cash generated from operations
Direct Taxes Paid (net off refunds)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
a) Investments
b) Interest Received

et Cash Flow from Investing Activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activites:
a) Borrowings - Curren!
by Loans Given - Current
¢) Finance Costs

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

D. Met changes in'Cash and Cash Equivalents
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalent - at commencement

Cash and Cash Equivalent - at close

Notes:

31st March, 2021

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Aist March, 2020

21515 (57.57)

014 0.20

(30.97) (31.42)

(204.35) (0.42)

(103 42) -

33.52 35.10

(69.93) (54.12)
= 0.40
3.90 (3.47)
1.497 10.28
= 142.42
18.59 (10.21)
18.06 (23.24)
1.50 6.46
- (1.83)
(1.88) 1.61

204.35 24838 (.42 131 84

156.46 77.72

8.09 308 64)

165.45 (230.92)
(100.84) 327.95
30 97 31.42

(69.97) 359 37
(4.79) (186.89)
1.32 48,79
(33 52) {35.10)

(36.99) (173.20)

56.49 ) (44.75)

37.80 52.55

96.29 37.80

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard

& (Ind-AS-7} - Cash Flow Statement.

b. Paticulars

Cash & Cash Equivalents comprises of:

As at

31st March, 2021

As at

31st March, 20:

Cash on Hand 3.66 2.74
Balances with Banks:

-in Current Accounts 92.63 35.07

Cash & Cash Equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 96.29 37.80

As at Mon-Cash Changes As at
Particulars Cash fl
31.03.2020 ash flows| Fair Value e 31.02.2021
changes Classification
Borrowings - Non Current 363.36 18.08 - - 381.42
Borrowings - Current B,807.76 (4.79) - - 8,902.97

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the consclidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Charered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E

W\gu\.‘l A’f’m""
(Sanjay Agrawal)

Partner

Membership No, 056902

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31st August, 2021

For and on behall of \he Board of Directors

Lalit Talwar (DIN : 06745551)

M

Digector

for3%

Mangoj Bose (DIN : [331860)

Director



RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 315, 2021

I(A) Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements of RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED comply in all material
aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act. The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial Statement of the associate
company Ishan Housing Projects Ltd.

The Company is primarily engaged in the Trading in Securities and Real Estate. The registered office of the
Company is located at Sagar Estate, 3" Floor, 2, Clive Ghat Street, Kolkata — 700 001.

The Financial Statements for the year ended March 31st, 2021 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on 31st August, 2021,

1(B) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a) Standards issued but not effective:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is
no such notification which would have been applicable from April 01, 2021.

On March 24, 2021, the MCA through a notification, amended Schedule I1I of the Companies Act, 2013, The
amendment revised Division I, IT and III of Schedule III and are applicable from April 01, 2021. Key
Amendments relating to Division II which relate to Companies whose financial statements are required to
comply with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 are:

i) Balance Sheet Amendments:

» Lease Liabilitics should be scparately disclosed under the head Financial Liabilities, duly
distinguished as Current or Non-Current,

e  Certain additional disclosures in the Statement of Changes in Equity such as Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to prior period errors and re-stated balances at the beginning of the current
reporting period,

e Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

o Specified format for ageing schedule of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Capital Work-in-
progress and Intangible Assets under Development.

e If a Company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from Banks
and financial institutions, then disclosure ef details where it has been used.

s Specific Disclosure under additional regulatory requirement such as compliance with Approved
Schemes of Arrangements, Compliance with Number of Layers of Companies, Title Deeds of
Limmovable Properties not held in the Name of Companies, Loans and Advances to Promoters,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Related Parties, details of Benami Property held,
ele.

if) Statement of Profit and Loss Amendments:

e Additional Disclosures relating 1o Corporate Sceial Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and
Crypto or Virtual Currency, specified under the head Additional Information in the notes forming
part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

These Amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by
Jaw.

b) Basis of Consolidation

The conselidated tinancial statements comprise the financial statements of the Cempany and its subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2021. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has:

%




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 315!, 2021

4. Power over the investee (i.c. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee)

b.  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

c.  The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policics other than those adopted 1n
the consolidated financial statements for like wansactions and cvents in similar circumstances, appropriatc
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Company’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent Company, i.c., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent
is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary,

[n term of Ind AS 110- “Consolidated Financial Statements”, the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries arc combined on a line- by- line basis by adding together the book/ fair value of like items like
assets, liabilities, income and expenditure, after fully eliminating intra group balances, infra group transactions
and any unrealized Profit/ Loss included therein. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The difference cf the cost of the Group of its Investnient in Subsidiaries over its proportionate share in the equity
of the respective investee companies as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognised in the Financial
Statement as Goodwill or Capital Tleserve, as the case may be,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
*  Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
*  Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
* Derecognises the cuulative translation differences recorded in equity
*  Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
*  Recognises the fair value of any investment retained
*  Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
*  Reclassifics the parent’s share of componzuis previously recognised in OCI to profit or Joss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposcd of the related assets or
liabilities. .

¢) Historical Cost Couvention .

The financizl statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
orinciples generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost
basis. except for certain assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair values as explained in relevant
accounting principles.

Accounting pelicies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in theaccounting policy hitherto in
use.
2. Summary cf Siznificant Accounting Policics
2.1 Qperating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013.

"




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31%t, 2021

2.2 Foreign Currencies

2.3

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Groupoperates (‘the functional currency'). The financial statements arc
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency,

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the Group at spot rates at the functional currency
spot rate (i.c. INR) at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchanpe at the
reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions in foreign currencies and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain
or foss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.c., translation differences on items whose fair valuc
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are catcgorised
within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurcment is directly or indirectly observable :

¢) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Group
determines whether fransfers have occurred between levels ir the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting
peciod.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has dstermined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above. 7t
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RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 31st, 2021

2.4 Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilitics during and at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a matzrial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods,
2.5  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shert-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which zre subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment
The Group has elected to adopt the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment under the Indian GAAP as
on 1*April 2016, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to IND AS. -

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are carried at cost of acquisition on current cost
basis less accnmulated depreciation and aceumulated impairment, if any. Cost comprises purchase price and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the income statemeni when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided on written dows value method over the useful lives of property, plant and equipment
as cstimated by management, Puisuant to Notificaticn of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 depreciation
s provided on prorata basis on written down value method at the rates determined based on estimated useful
lives ot property, plant and equipment where applicable, However, leaschold land is depreciated over lease
pericd on straight line basis.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
cach financiul year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.7  Intangible Assets

The Group has elected to adopt the carrying value of Property, Plant and Eqﬁipmcnt under the Indian GAAP as
on I April 2016, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to IND AS,

Intangible Assets are recognized only when future economic benefits arising out of the assets flow to ihe
enterprise and are amorctised over their useful life of three years. Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on iitial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losscs, if any. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year during which such expenditure is incurred.

2.8  Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development
Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development are carried at cost. Cost ircludes land,
related acquisition expenses, development / construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure,

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, the Group cstimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net zelling price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual assct, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Whare the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rute that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the




RIGHT INNUVA KNOW-HOW LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the vear ended March 315, 2021

2.10

2.11

2.12

asset. [n deterinining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identificd, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Irventories

Raw materials, Construction work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost ofinventories comprise all cost of purchase including cost of land, borrowing cost,
development costs and other cost incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition. The cost, in
general, is determined using weighted average cost method,

Contract cost incurred related to future activity of the contract are recognised as an asset provided it is probable
that theywill be recovered during the contract period. Such costs represent the amount due from customer and
are ofien classifiedas Construction work-in-progress.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue and Other Income

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economichencfits will flow to the Group and it can be
reliablymeasured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of theconsideration received/receivable net of rebate
and taxces, The Group applics the revenue recognition criteria to cach nature of revenue transaction as set-out
below:

i) Revenue from Construction Contracts
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and it can
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable net
of rebate and taxes. The Group applies the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of revenue
transaction as sct-out below:

Principles of Ind AS 18 in respect of sale of goods for recognising revenue, costs and profits from
transactions of real estate which are in substance similar to delivery of goods when the revenue
recognition process is completed; and

In case of 1eal estate sales where agreement for sale is executed for under construction propertics,
revenue in respect of individual contracts is recognised when performance o the contract is considered
to be completed.

Dividend Income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established.
All other incomes are recognised on accrual basis.
Employee Benefits
L. Defined Contribution Plan

a.  Provideat Fund
Contributions in respect of all Employees are madeto the Regional Provident Fund as per the
provisions of Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisiors Act, 1952 and are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when services are rendered by employees. The
Group has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the Regicna! Providest fund,

II. Defined Benefit Plan

a.  Oratui
Gramit;yis & post-cmployment benefit and is 1 the nature ofa defined benefit plan. The Hability
recognized in the balancesheel in respect of gratuity is the present value of the
definedbencfit/obligation at the baiance sheet date. together withadjustments for unrecognized
acluarial gains or losses andpast service costs. The defined benefit/obligation is calculatedat or near
the balance sheet date by an independent actuaryusing the projected unit credit method. This is
based on standard rates of inflation, salary growth rate and morta ity. Di L factors are
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determined close to cach year-end byreference to market yields on government bonds that
haveterms to maturity approximating the terms of the relatedliability, Current Service cost and
Interest component on the Group’s defined benefit plan isincluded in employee benefits expense.
Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of theliability are included in other
comprehensive income,

[II. Long Term Compensated Absences

The Group treats accumulated leave to the extent such leave are carried forward as long-term employce
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Current Service cost and
Interest component arising out of such valuation is included in employee benefits expense. Actuarial
gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive
income. The Group presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not
have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Group
has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current liability.

‘Taxes on Income
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where
the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements at the reporting date. Deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that hove been enactd
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred ineome tax liavility is setile,

Deferred tax assets arc recognised for all deductible temperary differences and unused tax losses enly if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabie profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offsct current tax
assote and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same laxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and infends either
{o settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settie the liability simultancously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in prefit or loss, cxcept to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred
tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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2.13.1 Provisions and Contingencies

A provision i¢ recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or construstive) as a result of
past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-lax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specitic to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligatioh that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group
or a present obligation that is not recogrized becsuse it is not probable that an outflow cf resources will be
required to settle the obligation. The Group does nol recognize a contingent liabiiity but discloses its
axistence in the financial statements.

214 Borrowing Cosfts

Borrowing Costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Borrowing Costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period {from commencement
of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset up to the date the asset is ready for
its intended use is added to the cost of the assets. Capitalisation of Borrowing Costs is suspended and
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying assets is interrupted. All other torrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur,

2.15  Earnings nev Share

Rasic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharchoiders by the weighted average number of equity chiares oatstanding diring the peried. Fer the purnose
of caleulating dilutzd earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity
sharcholders awd the weighted average number of shares outstanding dwiing the neriod is adjusted for the
effects of ull cilutive potential equity shares.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

2.16  Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to @ financial asset of one entity and a finangiai liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

A, Finarclai ussos
i. Initiz! recopnition and measuremnent. ;
All finapciel assets are recognised initially at fair vatue plus, in the cose of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or less, transaction costs that arc attributable to the acquisition
o the financial assct.

if. Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categorics:
a.  Debt instruments at amortised cost '
b, Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI

Debt instriusments af amortised cost other than derivative contracts -

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;
o The asset is held within a business madel whose chjective is fohold assets for collecting
centractual cash fiows, and
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iii.

iv.

o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
arc recognised in the profit or loss, This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value other than equity
mvestments measured at deemed cost on first time adoption of Ind AS. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classificd as at F'VTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group decides
to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an
instrurnent-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
nstrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e (he Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

Impairiaent of financial asscts

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

e  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach doces not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance bzsed on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
frown its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulling from all possible default events over the
expecied life of a financial instrument. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive, discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required o
consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms
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As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected lifc of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
cxpenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

e Financial assets measurcd al amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces
the net carrying amouant. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the group doss not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

B. Financial liabilities
i. Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures, net of directly attributable transaction
COsts,

¥ The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafls, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

ii. Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as deseribed below:

Financia} liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Finaucial liebilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, financial liabilities held for
tracing and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instrments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
cffective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading arc recognised in the profit of ioss.

Financial liabilities designated upen initial recogniticn at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and cnuly if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss ate not subsequently transferred to P&I.. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity. All other changes in fair value of such liabilily sre
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or preminm on acquisition and [ees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance rosts in the

statement of prefit and loss.

-
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2.17

2.18

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the cffectiveinterest method, less allowance for doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

These amounts repiesent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Groupprior to the end of
financial year, The amounts are generally unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is notdue within the Group’s operating cycle. They arc recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured atamortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issucd by the Group are those coutracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs because the specified borrower fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terins of a loan agreement. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Tnd AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recogrition of
ancw hiability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the siatement of profil
and loss.

Ofisetiing ¢l finarcial instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable icgal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on 2 net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecus|v,

Operating Segments

The Business process and Risk Management Committee of the Group, approved by the Board of Directors and
Audit Committee performs the function of allotment of resources and assessmerit of performance of the Group.
Cousidering the leval of activities performed, frequency of their meetings and level of finality of their decisions,
the Group has identified that Chief Operating Decision Maker function is being performed by the Business
process and Risk Management Committee. The financial information vresentzd to the Business process and Risk
Management Committee in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the annual operating plan is
on a consolidated basis. The Group’s business activity falls within two rcportable business segment viz. *Real
estate projects development’, and ‘others as per IND AS -108.

Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearcst lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

A
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

3) Investments (Non-Current): Amount in ¥ Lakhs
; Face 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Particulars

Value Nos. T Nos. T

Investment in Equity instruments (fully paid - up)
A) Quoted
a. Measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Madanlal Ltd. 10 3,35,000 - 5,35,000 -

MKJ Developers Ltd. 10 2,91,182 799.65 291,162 799.65

MKJ Enterprises Ltd. 10 429 1.11 429 1.11
Total (A) B00.76 800.76

B) Unquoted
a. Measured at Cost
Investment in Associates

Ishan Housing Projects Ltd. 10 85,000 85.00 85,000 85.00
Add: Share of Profit/ (Loss) -85.00 -85.00
m“;ﬂ=— —_- v

b. Measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

Bengal Bended Warehouse Limited 12.50 41,982 251.05 41,982 251.05
Dankuni Projects Ltd. 10 460,200 86.87 4,80,200 86.87
Keventer Agro Ltd. 10 1,77,083 - 1,77,083 120.42
Keventer Projects 1.td. 10 1,30,020 3,259.20 1,30,020 3,250.20
MK Tradex Lid. 10 3,20,000 §29.34 3,20,200 629.34
Sasmal Infrastructure Pvi. Lic. 10 25,000 2019 25,000 20,19
Total (b) 4.24§§5_ 4,367.07
¢. Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Adia Tracome P. Ltd. 10 4,500 0.5 1,500 0.18
Krishna Futuretrade P. Lt 10 1,500 015 1,600 0.18
Navotech Exim P. Lid. 10 1,500 015 1,500 D.15
Nirmalkunj Tracom P. Ltd. 10 1,500 015 1,500 0.15
Rajesh Dealrade P. Ltd. 10 1,500 015 1,500 0.15
Shew Merchandise P, Lid. 10 1,500 0.15 1,500 D15
Shivamvani Distributors P, 10 1,500 015 1,600 015
Shyamai Dealtrade P, Ltd. 10 1,500 0.15 1,600 0.15
Simplex Zstatas Pvt Ltd, 12 20,000 2.00 20,000 2,
Total (c) _ 330 3.20

Prelererce Shrrcs

Keventer Capital Ltd 12 625,587 - 8,286,327 -
Keventer Global Pvt. Lid. 100 221,353 22135 -
221.55 -
Total « B (a+b+c) 447120 4,370.27
Total ( A+ B) 5,271.96 TEAT103
C) Investment in Immovable Property Sq. ft Sq. ft
Comirercial Space 260 B.85 940 885
) 8.85 __ 883
TOTAL(A+B+C) 5,260.81 "5,170.88
Agoregate marset value guoted investmenis BON.76 B00.76
Aggregaie amount of unquoted investrmants 4,4€0.05 4,378.12

Haggregate amcunt of impairment in the volue of nvesiment + - "
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Since the company intends to sell the immovable properly in the near future, hence the same has not been classified
as "Immovable Property" in Balance Sheet.

The newly purchased shares are not transferred in the name of the Company as on the reporting date.

4) Loans
Considered good, Unsecured
Loans Given
- to Related Parlies 131.02 112.69
- to others 269.89 287.59
Security Deposit 14.48 16.43
415.39 __M8T1
5) Other Financial Assets
Advances 13.65 13.55
13.58 13.55
6) Inventories:
Particulars Face 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Value Nos. T Nos, T
A. Securities:
Equity Shares:
1) Quoted:
MKJ Deveiopers Lid, 10 12,300 552 12,300 5.52
Quadrant Televentures Lid. 1 25,000,000 475 25,00,000 475
10.27 __1oa7
ii) Unguoted:
Samrat Bicycles Lid. 10 1,000 ccs 1,600 0.08
: 0.8 0.05
Total(A) 1035 1035
B. Rezl Estate: Sq. ft Sq. ft
Commercial Units 3,848.00 193.78 3,8438.00 183.78
Total(B) 193.78 193.78
Total (A+B) 204.13 204.12
== ——1 R
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(CIN : L51109WB1974PLC0O29635)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

As at
31st March, 2021

Amount in ¥ Lakhs
As at
31st March, 2020

7. Trade Receivables
Unsecured, Considerad Good
Rent Receivable 46.05 48.02
46.05 48.02
As at As at

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

8. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance at Banks 92.63 35.07
Cash on Hand 3.66 2.74
96.29 37.80
As at As at

. Current Tax Assets {Net)

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

Tax Deducted at Source 4.59 13.78
Income Tax Payments 0.20 -
4.79 13.78
As at As at

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

10. Other Current Assets
GST Input - 3.80
Prepaid Expenses 0.72 0.83
0.72 4.63
11. Equity Share Capital
Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
Authorised :
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 23,50,000 235.00 23,50,000 235.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up: B
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up. 23,35,229 233.52 23,35229 233.52
(Of the above 6,85,229 Equity Shares each
fully paid up have been issued for
consideration other than cash persuant fo a
Scheme of Amalgamation)
Total 233.52 233.52

The reconciliatien of the number of shares outstanding:
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

At the beginning of the year 23.35 23.35
Changes during the year 4 -
At the end of the year 23.35 23.35

The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

As at As at

Name of the Shareholder 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
Apex Enterprises (India) Limited 2,890,000 12.42% 2,90,000 12.42%
Madanlal Limiled 3,90,350 16.72% 3,90,350 16.72%
MI<J Developers Limited 2,50,000 10.71% 2,50,000 10.71%
MKJ Enterprises Limited 5,76,739 24.70% 5,76,739 24.70%

L7

o
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(CIN : L51109WR1974PLC029635)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements
Amount in ¥ Lakhs

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to the Equity Shares:

The Equity Shares of the Company, having par value of Rs. 10/- per share, rank pari-passu in all respects including
vating rights and entitiement to dividend

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
12. Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
Securities Premium:
As per last accounts §00.00 600.00
Retained Earnings:
As per last accounts -5,108.03 -5,127.72
Add: Profil / (loss) during the year 21515 254.65
Adjustment for Sale of Investments - -235.96
Balance as at year-end -4,893.88 -5,109.03
Items of OCI
Equity Instruments through OCl:
As per last accounts 21.94 20.93
Add: Comprehensive Income during 1 -103.42 1.00
Balance as at year-end -81.48 21.94
-4,375.36 -4,487.10
13. Borrowings (Non Current)
Secured Loan form Banks * 349.42 331.62
Security Deposit Received 32.00 31.75
o 381.42 363.36
* Loan against properly taken from Kotak Mahindra Banl: 1td. To be repaid in equated monthly instalment within
120 months
14. Deferred Tax Liabilities
Pariiculars Deferred tax Changes Deferred tax
Assets / for the year Assets [
(Liabilities) 2020-21 (Liabilities)
as at as at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Deferred tax on gain of investments -874.64 0.00 -874.64
-§74.64 0.00 -874.64

Note- Since it s not probable that future taxabie profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences may be uilized, hence no 42feirzd lax assels have been recognised.

Az al As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
15. Other Nen-Current Liabilities
Advance against Sale of Properly 2.87 8.37
Other Advarices 21.52 3.44
30.39 & 11.81
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28, Reconciliation of Tax Expense and accounting profit multiplied by India’s Tax rate :

Amount in T Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2021

For the year ended
31st March, 2020

Profit before Tax

Applicable Tax Rate

Tax Expense as per applicable tax rate
Tax effect of :

Permanent disallowances

Exempted Income

Income Taxed at different rate

Lapsing of past losses / MAT Entitlement
Others

Total Tax expenses

Tax expenses recognised in Profit or Loss
Effective tax rate

29. Related Party Disclosures:

(a) Names of the related parties with whom signi

are given below:-

( ¥ in lakhs)

215.15
26.00%
NIL

0.00
0.00
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

254 .64
25.75%
NIL

0.00
0.00
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

ficant relations exist and transactions have taken place during the year

(i) Enterprises/Associates where key management personnel is able to exercise significant influence:
MKJ Enterprises Lid.
Portside Estate Ltd.
Sarvesh Housing Projects Pvt. Ltd
Twenly First Century Securities Lid.

Dankuni Projects Ltd.
Ishan Housing Projects Ltd.
Mantu Housing Projects Ltd.
MKJ Developers Lid.

(ii) Key Management Personnel :
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Jalan
Mr. Lalit Talwar
Mr. Manoj Bose
Ms. Pritha Basu
Ms. Debjani Chatterjee

Position
Director

Wholetime Director & CFO

Director
Director
Director

(b) Transactions during the year with related parties in the ordinary course of business :

Amount in T lakhs

N\

Related parties as referred in
Agsociates / Key
Nature of transactions Enterprises Management Total
Personnel
a (i) above a (ii) above
T b T
1) Unsecured Borrowings:
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 £879.90 - 8,879.90
(9;067.90) = (9,057.90)
Taken during the year 76.03 - 76.03
{47.00) - (47.00)
Paid during the year 5,108.00 - 5,108.00
(235.00) (235.00)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 3,847.93 - 3,847.93
(8,879.90) - (8,879.90)
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Amount in ¥ Lakhs

l
Related parties as referred in
Associates / Key
Nature of transactions Enterprises Management Total
Personnel
a (i) above a (i) above
T 3 T
2) Loans Given:
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 112.79 - 112.79
(103.53) - (103.53)
Taken during the year 18.85 - 18.85
(9.26) - (9.26)
Paid during the year 0.61 - 0.61
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 131.02 - 131.02
(112.79) - (112.79)
3) Rent Paid 0.18 - 0.18
(0.18) - (0.18)
4) Interest Paid - - -
5) Interest Received 11.19 - 11.19
6) Directors' Remuneration - 1.20 1.20
- (1.20) (1.20)
7) Directors' Sitting Fees - 0.64 C.61
- (0.39) (032}

igures in brackel indicate figures relating to previous year.

30. Gzgment Repoiting:

In Compliance with Indian Accounting Standard AS - 108 on Segment Reporting issued by the Instilute of Chartered

Accountants of India, the Segment Information is given below:

Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2021 2020
3 k4
1. Revenue (including taxes on Revenue)
Real Estate 87.91 215,95
Securities oo -
Total Revenue 87.91 215.95
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Amount in ¥ Lakhs

Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2021 2020
4 T
2. Results
Real Estate 25.69 (29.63)
Securities (0.32) (0.41)
Segment Result 25.37 (30.04)
Unallocable (Expenses) net off Unallocable Income 189.92 (59.19)
Operating Profit / (Loss) 215.29 (89.23)
Interest Income - 31.84
Interest (Expenses) - -
Depreciation 0.14 0.20
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 215.15 (57.60)
Taxation for the year & -
Profit after tax and before exceptional items 215.15 (57.60)
Exceptional ltems - -
Net Profit / (Loss) 215.15 (57.60)
. Other Informations:
Segment Assets
Real Estate 248.69 247.22
Securities 5,282.31 5,181.38
5,531.00 5,428.60
Unallocated Corporate Assels 53113 486.98
Total Assels 6,062.13 5,915.58
Segment Liabilities
Real Estate 411.81 371.74
Securitizs - -
411.81 371.74
Unallocated Carporate Liabilities 9,792.13 9,797.41
Total Liabilities 10,203.94 10,169.16

31, The accumulaled losses of the Company as at year-end are in excess of the Net Worth of the Company. The Net
Worth of the Company has completely been eroded. The Company has been incurring losses regularly. The Company
has incurred profit in the current financial year and had cash loss in the immediately preceeding financial year.

The Company has prepared the accounfs on a going concern basis as the management is of the opinion that the
Company will be able to mitigate the losses by sale of inventories at a future date.

S
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Amount in T Lakhs

32, Fair Value Measurements
A) The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Carrying Amount Fair Vaiue
FVTPL o Amartised Cost Total Levell Loval 2 Level 3 Total
|}, |Financial Assets and Liabilities as at March 31,
. [Non-Currenl Financlal Assets
| Investmant in Equity Shares- Quoted B0 76 £00.76 B00.76 B00.76
|Investment in Equity Shares- Unguoted 3.20 4,246,65 4,145.85 3.0 4 246.65 - 4,249.85
_|Irwzstment in Preference Shares- Uinquoted ; 22135 213 !
Inwvestrment in Immovahie Pioperty - B35 885 3.85 B85
Other Fnancial Assets i 4153 415.39 415.39 415.39
(2. 1Current Finanefal Assets
| {Trade receizables 46.05 46.05 46.05 A6.05
Cash and Casnh equivalents 95.29 96.29 96.25 96.29
ntal 320 504741 13193 5,838.54 3.20 5,047.41 566.58 5,17.19
&, INon-Current Finaielal Labfites
ﬂoerowmgs 35142 38L.42 38142 33142
|6 |Current Firanciai Liabilities
Borrowings £.902.97 £.902.97 8,902.97 8,502.97 |
| |Other Financial Failives 1433 14.33 14.33 1833
= Total - . 8,917.3C 5,284.39 - - 9,284.39 5,284.33
L. |Financlal Asseis and Liabilities as at March 31,
@ |Non: Current Financial Assels
|_|investmert in Equity Shares- Custed 200,76 B00.76 -
| nvestment in Equity Shares- Uinguoted . 1.0 4.22.07 4 370,27 - - - -
|_{Investent in lin movabie Property 885 435 E.85 4.85
Othzr Financial Assety 4161 41671 416,71 41671
b. | Current Finaycial Assets
|_{Trade receivabler 807 48.02 48.01 4802
Cash ! Cash patiealent 3L L0 3080 37.80
pi 5,167.82 5112 561242 . £ 511.39 511.39
. [Kon Turrant Finarcial Linkélita:
| |Boerowinze 363.36 36136 36336 363.35
. | Surrnt Fine.ocial Labilities
Burrawings E S07.76 #,907.75 8.9070.76 8,507,768
Stlier finaz.ial iabifties | i 12,54 1284 12.84 13,84
- i 9,223.97 ,083.97 - - 9,271.13 321113
|

B) Measurernent of Fair Value
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

a) The carrying amount of trade receivables,trade payatles, deposits, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent
includiny current bank balances and other liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair vaiues due to
current and short term nature of such balances.

b} Finarcial instruments with fixed and variable inferasi 1atas are evaliated by thz comnpany basac¢ on paramelers
such as irlerest rates and individual tredit worthiness of the counterparty, Based on ihis evaluation allowances if
requirad, zre taken to account for expactad losses of thasa receivables.,

) The fair value of investment in equity shares cther than subsidiaries were calculated based on cash flows
discounted using the current lending rate. They ase clacsified as Level-3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due
Lo inclusion of unobservable inputs.

d) In unquoted equity instruments where most recent information is not available, or where a wide range of posaivle
fair value measurements are present, cost has been considared to be the fair value.

C) Fair Value Hizrarchy : .
The fair value of financial nsiruments 4s referrad to above have been classified info three categories depending on
the inputs used in the valuation tectinique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilites (Levei-1 mgasurements) and lowest prioritfo unabservable inputs (Level-3
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Amount in ¥ Lakhs

Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments using quoted prices. These include listed equity
instruments and mutual funds that have quated price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in
slock exchanges are valued using the closing prices as at the reporting period,

Level 2 : Inputs other than the quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liabilitiy,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 : If ane or more of the significant inpuls is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included
in Level 3. This is the case for unlisted equilv securifies included in Level 3.

33. Capltal Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is lo ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structure and maximize shareholder value. The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in
the light of changes in economic conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other sirategic investment
plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid fo
shareholders or issue new share. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

The Company monitors capital using a ratio of ‘adjusted net debt' to 'equity'. For this purpose, adjusted nat debt is
defined as total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and bank balances. Equity
comprises of equity including share premium and all other equily reserves attribulable to the equity shareholders.

The company's adjusted et debt to equity ratio is as follows

Particulars 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Borrowings:

Current and Non Current (¥ in Lakhs) 9,204 .39 8,271.13
Less: Cash and Cash Equivelents (T in Lakhs) (96.29) (37.80)
Adjusted nel debt (T in Lakhs) 9,188.10 9,233.32
Total Equity ( Tin Lakhs) (4,141.84) (4,253.57)
Capital Gearing Ratio 1.82 1.85

34. Financial Risk Management
The process of identification and evaluation of

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instuments:
a) Credit Risk

b) Liguidity Rigk

¢) Market Risk

A. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss (o the company if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to
meet ils contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's trade and othar receivebles. The
carrying amount of financial assets represent the maxinum credii risk EXposure.

i) Trade and olhar receivables
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset
are estimated by adopting the simplified approach using a provision matrix. The loss rales are cornputed using a
'roll rate' method based on the probability of receivailes progressing lhrough successive stages lill full provision for
the trade receivable is made.

ii) The Company held cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances of 96.29 Lakhs as at March 31, 2021, (%
37.80 Lakhs as at March 31, 2020). The same are held with banks with good credit rating.
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B. Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to
manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, thal it will have sufficient liquidity to meel its liabilities as and when
they are due, both under normal and stressful conditions.

The following are the remaining contractual

1 year or 1-2 years More than 2 Total
less years
k4 T 4 T

a) Contractual maturities of financial

liabilities as on 31st March, 2021

Borrowings - Non current 62.84 118.70 199.88 381.42

Borrowings - Current 8,902.97 8,902 97
b) Contractual maturities of financial

liabilities as on 31st March, 2020

Borrowings - Non current 363.36 363.36

Borrowings - Current 8,907.76 8,807.76

C. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial assets will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. The abjective of market risk management is fo manage and control risk exposure within
acceplable parameters.

D. Interest Rate Risk and Sensitivity

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rales relates primarily to the long term debt
obligations with Floating rate of interest.

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
T 24
Wariable rate of Borrowing
Fixed rate of Borrowing

9,284.39 927113

35.  Previous Year's figures have been re-grouped! re-arranged wherever necessary.
36.  Figures have been rounded off to Indian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs to 2 places of decimals
As per our report of even date attached.
e Board of Directors
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